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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF DELAWARE

CIRCUIT VENTURES LLC, §
§
Plaintiff, § Case No: 1:19-cv-00856-MN
§
vs. §
§
ALARM.COM HOLDINGS, INC. N
dba LINK INTERACTIVE, N JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
§
Defendant. §
§

FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT

Plaintiff Circuit Ventures LLC (“Plaintiff” or “CV”), by and through its attorneys, files
this First Amended Complaint against Alarm.com Holdings, Inc. dba Link Interactive
(“Defendant” or “Link Interactive”) for infringement of United States Patent Nos. 7,834,744
(“the 744 Patent”); 8,816,869 (“the ‘869 Patent”); and 8,912,893 (“the ‘893 Patent™).

PARTIES AND JURISDICTION

1. This is an action for patent infringement under Title 35 of the United States Code.
Plaintiff is seeking injunctive relief as well as damages.

2. Jurisdiction is proper in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 (Federal
Question) and 1338(a) (Patents) because this is a civil action for patent infringement arising
under the United States patent statutes.

3. Plaintiff is a Delaware LLC, with an office address of 825 Watters Creek Blvd.,
Building M, Suite 250, Allen, TX 75013.

4. Upon information and belief, Defendant is a Delaware corporation with a place of
business located at 8281 Greensboro Drive, Suite 100, Tysons, VA 22101. This Court has
personal jurisdiction over Defendant because Defendant has committed, and continues to
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commit, acts of infringement in this District, has conducted business in this District, and/or has
engaged in continuous and systematic activities in this District.
5. Upon information and belief, Defendant’s instrumentalities that are alleged herein
to infringe were and continue to be used, imported, offered for sale, and/or sold in this District.
VENUE
6. On information and belief, venue is proper in this District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §

1400(b) because Defendant is deemed to be a resident of this District.

COUNT I
(INFRINGEMENT OF UNITED STATES PATENT NO. 7,834,744)
7. Plaintiff incorporates paragraphs 1 through 6 herein by reference.
8. This cause of action arises under the patent laws of the United States and, in

particular, under 35 U.S.C. §§ 271, et seq.

9. Plaintiff is the owner by assignment of the ‘744 Patent with sole rights to enforce
the ‘744 Patent and sue infringers.

10. A copy of the ‘744 Patent, titled “Circuit Monitoring Device,” is attached hereto
as Exhibit A.

1. The ‘744 Patent is valid, enforceable, and was duly issued in full compliance with
Title 35 of the United States Code.

12. The claims of the ‘744 Patent recite a flexible system that can reproduce the
function of a typical security management system. ‘744 Patent, 3:26-28. Typical systems are
proprietary and components from one system will not work with components from another
system. Additionally, any modifications to the hardware or software of a typical system usually
must be done by the original manufacturer. Id., 1:31-39. Further, each manufacturer of typical
security management system equipment specifies a particular value of field resistance for the last

PLAINTIFF’S FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT AGAINST DEFENDANT
ALARM.COM HOLDINGS, INC. dba LINK INTERACTIVE PAGE |2



Case 1:19-cv-00856-MN Document 10 Filed 07/17/19 Page 3 of 37 PagelD #: 160

field device in a line of devices. Id., 2:18-20. The problems with typical systems are especially
apparent when an owner needs to upgrade or modify their system. Id., 2:39-50.
Because each line connected to the system includes a field resistor of a particular
value, the owner is forced to return to the original supplier of the SMS in order to
provide an upgrade. Alternatively, the system owner must rewire each of the lines
connected to the system and replace the field resistor with a different value, as
specified by the supplier of the new SMS control unit. Where the resistor is built
into the field device it cannot be changed and the system owner is forced to also
replace each of the devices if it wants to change to a different brand of SMS
control unit.
Id., 2:40-50. And, typical systems include an operator interface which is proprietary and cannot
be changed by the user. Id., 2:51-57. The system claimed in the ‘744 Patent allows for the
retrofit of existing security management systems while using the existing circuity wiring of the
typical legacy system. Id., 21-28.

13.  Claim 1, for example, recites:

An apparatus for monitoring a circuit and for coupling to a central system
comprising:

a circuit module to determine the status of the circuit;

a network communications module coupled to the circuit module to
communicate a signal indicative of the assigned status to the central system via a
network, said network communications module limiting all status
communications with the central system to only the signal indicative of the
assigned status; and

a display to present an indication of a stus of the circuit bawsed on the
signal indicative of the assigned status, wherein the circuit module meausres a
magnitude of a parameter of the circuit and generates a count value representative
of said magnitude.

14. The components recited in the claims (such as in claim 1 for example) are
configured, such that they operate in a non-conventional manner.

15. The components recited in the claims (such as in claim 1 for example) are

configured so as to allow a user to set customized ranges of values to be set as parameters of
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end-of-line modules (i.e., parameters of a circuit). Generic processors cannot provide this
functionality. As stated in the specification, “[t]he various threshold values . . . are preferably
configured as variables which may be set as parameters of the EOL module. In this way, the
EOL module may be configured to operate with a wide range of field resistors, thus enabling the
EOL module to be retrofitted to a wide range of field circuits wherein the series and field
resistors . . . already exist and cannot readily be changed.” ‘744 Patent, 7:12-19; see also 1d.,
7:30-49 and 7:51-63.

Such . . . systems using EOL modules according to the present invention may be

readily retrofitted to existing system, while utilizing the existing wiring regardless

of existing resistance values. A system built in this way, either as an original

installation or as a retrofit, provides a flexible and relatively inexpensive option

which eliminates dependency on proprietary hardware and software.

Id., 8:37-43. Thus, the ‘744 Patent specification clarifies that the claimed components,
performing the claimed functionality, are not conventional or generic.

16. Collectively, the claimed embodiments in the ‘744 Patent provide new solutions
to problems of traditional security monitoring systems. These solutions are enabled by non-
generic components functioning in a non-conventional manner.

17. The ‘744 Patent solves a problem with the art that is rooted in computer
technology. The ‘744 Patent does not merely recite the performance of some business practice
known from the pre-Internet world along with the requirement to perform it on the Internet.

18.  Upon information and belief, Defendant has infringed and continues to infringe
one or more claims, including at least Claim 1 of the ‘744 Patent by making, using, importing,
selling, and/or offering for sale, field devices, wireless systems, circuit monitoring devices,

and/or components for such systems, which are covered by one or more claims of the ‘744

Patent. Defendant causes infringement by its customers and users and encourages the use of
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accused devices through distribution, support and customer services. Defendant has infringed
and continues to infringe the ‘744 Patent directly in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271.

19.  Upon information and belief, Defendant has infringed and continues to infringe
one or more claims, including at least Claim 1, of the ‘744 Patent by making, using, importing,
selling, and/or offering for sale, field devices, wireless systems, circuit monitoring devices,
and/or components for such systems covered by one or more claims of the ‘744 Patent.
Defendant causes infringement by its customers and users and encourages the use of accused
devices through distribution, support and customer services. Defendant has infringed and
continues to infringe the ‘744 Patent directly in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271.

20. Regarding Claim 1, Defendant makes, uses, sells and/or offers for sale an
apparatus for monitoring a circuit and for coupling to a central system. For example, Defendant
provides a Home Security and Home Automation System (such as Home Security Cameras, DIY
Home Security, Wireless Home Security, Alarm Chat, Home Automation Control and/or Z
Wave Home Automation) for monitoring at least one of the sensors (such as Wireless Door and
Window Sensors, Tilt Sensor, Smoke/Heat/Freeze Sensor, FireFighter Module, Disaster Sensor,
Carbon Monoxide Detector, Water Leak Detector Sensor, Motion Sensor, Indoor Camera etc.).
Link Interactive also provides central alarm control panels (“central system”) (such as
Go!Control Alarm Panel, Smart Home Panel, Secondary Touchpad and/or 1Q Panel 2 Remote)
which couples to the sensor using wireless network (such as GSM cellular, BLE 4.2, Wi-Fi
and/or Z-Wave). Infringing products and certain aspects of this element are illustrated in the

screenshots below and/or in those provided in connection with other allegations herein.
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m LINK P Sy Ve i < Pny v o YW 18778265443

Buid Your Own Secunity

)L‘T LINH' Home Securty - Home Automation ~ Pricing Support  Login ! 1-877-826-5443
( ) NTERACTIVE

Home Security Cameras
OIY Mome Secunty
Wireless Home Security
Alarm Chat

Convenient Home Automation Control
One App For All Your Devices.

Request Quote

Source: https://www_linkinteractive.com’home-automati on’home-automation-control/
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< ﬁ > LINK' Home Security + Home Automation «~ Pricing Support  Login .! 1_877_826_5443
NTERACTIVE

Home Automation Control
Z Wave Home Automation

Convenient Home Automation Control
One App For All Your Devices.

Request Quote

Source: https://www.linkinteractive.com/home-automation’home-automation-control/
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ACTIVE

@HNK Home Secuty +  Home Automaton « Prciy Suppod Logn W 1.877-826-5443

DIY Security Equipment

Uink Interactive offers you the fiexdbiity 10 cusiomize your own diy homne security system 10 match your specific needs and budget. You'll find affordable security
products that have attained the highest level of relabilty Put yourself in control of your home's safety 1oday with the help of Link Interactive

We ofier the highest quality in customer support before. during and after the sallinstallation process via ve chal, phone, email, skype, and easydo-follow
installation videos. Save yourself Sme and money with 3 security company hat's been in business since 1952 and camies an A+ ratng from the Betler Business

Bureau

Which Type of Security Products Are You Looking For?

= ok =8y wre  uv

Add Ons

Life Safety Home Automation Cameras

Home Security

Build A Custom Security Sysiem

\ % S Put Together A Security/Home Automation System
Lo That Fits Your Needs

N
2 This option lets you select from all of cur components 10 builld 3 customized option perfect
. for your home or small business.

Popular Security Systems for your Home

2GIG Indoor HD Camera

GolControl Alarm Panel PANIC1 Wireless Remote Panic Button
This indoor camera includes IR LEDs for vievang

The Future of residensal home securty and home The wireless waler-resistant panic bution is
management is NOW With the Golcontrol alam completely portable and comes with 3 necidace in lovw-light condiions and incorporates PIR with
panel. you o an all-in-cne security system with coed, wiistband and beit ciip. The pendant may be video motion detection (VMD) 1o reduce false
home management used anywhere, even in the shower! moSon-detection events

Source: https://www _linkinteractive.com’home-security/div-home-security/

“/
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Mome Securty +  Home Astomaticn +  Pricg  Seppod  Logi g 1-877-826-5443

Life Safety Products

e derted and ready for any fees or home dsasiers with e e safely equipment ofleced by Link Inferacive. We offer 3 selecton of smoke
sensors. heat dedacions. Carbon Mononde Sensors. and more wWhich Can o be Integr aed N0 Alarm com's cioud senvice. alowing you 10 control

and monkior every component of your family's safety from coe central control center

Home Security
Life Safety

Home Automation
Cameras

Add Ons

Smoke/Heat/Freeze Sensor

The weless SmokeMeatlFreeze Sensor, 2GIG's
nexd generation in fre and feede prolection. offers
smoke Setechon heat detecton. and Seele
Cetecton B i3 more customCable than previous
models Dy alowang separation of the smoke heat
and Feele featires enabing Te alawm 1o elect

)
.-/
Heat Detector

The sensor will sand 3 signal f f senses an
Increase of 15 o more degrees per minude. and wil
10 wonal € e emaronmental lemper dture
reaches 135 degrees

SO, Bvd_ or 3l BPee

Disaster Sensor I

Theee Qoisys compatibie wireless sensors in one’ it
detects Sood heat and freeze stuatons

FireFighter Module

The 2Gip FreFighter is 3 quick and easy way 1o
234 sencke Marm eontonng 10 your 20k contral
panel FreFighter & specifically tuned 10 recognce
e speciic cadence of 3 UL Ested semcke
Gelector's alarm. This unique Judio fechnology
Montces existeg UL Bsted hard wired smoke
detectors in 2 home and will send a wireless signal
10 the control paned when an alarm is detecied The
control panel vil then contact the central
mondonng staton VWhen used with e
nlerconrecied smoke detector found in most

Source: https:/www_linkinteractive.com/product cat/life-safety/
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@UNK fove Securlly = Home Avtomation « Prdng Swpon  Logr ! 1-877-826-5443

Home Security Products

4 1 an eacolor

Source: https://www_linkinteractive.com/product cat’home-security/
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Dedicated Communication

Dedicated and secure cellular communication provides safe and reliable
uninterrupted protection — even if the phone, internet or broadband is down

Reliable & fast cellular communication, no landline needed

In the event of a power outage, your system will operate on backup battery
power for 24 hours $0 you stay secure

Safe for critical secunty messages — not shared with internet, entertainment or
phone lines

Tamper-Resistant
Alarm com withstands common vuinerabilities 1o keep you protected when you need it most

Patented Crash & Smash technology ensures that your system Secure cellular communication is not impacted by damaged
works even if the security panel is damaged before it can send a phone, internet or broadband lines that can be cut from the
signal, or the phone line is cut outside

Source: https:/www _linkinteractive.com’home-automation/z-wave-home-automation/
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Awareness & Control Wherever You Go

Unilke tradtional systems that only alert you in an alarm event, Alarm com lets you know what's happening at your peoperty at any Sme — whether your system &
armed or nol. ANG With cur modile app, you can check in anytime and arm and Asarm your system remotely wherever you go

Alarm.com -—
The Wright Home: Front Door S
Video recorded a new video clip -

at 3:41PM on Wed, 10/12.

Cancel OK

Mobile App

Stay in control of your system at all Smes. Our 20 rated, easy 0 use mobie app puts your home in your
hands. You can arm and disarm your system, and check the amng status at any time

Instant Alerts

Gel real-time notifications by et of emad 10 know What's happening 3t home, the moment it happens | .
Choose %0 receive akirts via text, push notification. emal or phone call

Personalized User Codes

Croate unique user codes %or your family and visitors, and know who's coming and going, and who armed
or disarmed the system. Enable or dsable codes at any time

History
Lock back at activity over time or search for specific events. \With our always-aware sensors and

searchatie event history, you can review any actviy by $ensor, ype of event, date of tme
Source: https://www_linkinteractive.com/home-automation/z-wave-home-automation/

21.  The infringing products provide a circuit module to determine a status of the
circuit. For example, the Home Security and Home Automation System integrates with at least
one of the sensors (“circuit module”) (such as Wireless Door and Window Sensors, Tilt Sensor,
Smoke/Heat/Freeze Sensor, FireFighter Module, Disaster Sensor, Carbon Monoxide Detector,
Water Leak Detector Sensor, Motion Sensor, Indoor Camera etc.) to determine a status (such as
motion, smoke and/or leakage of carbon monoxide) of the sensor. Certain aspects of this
element are illustrated in the screenshots provided in connection with other allegations herein.

22.  The infringing products provide a network communications module coupled to

the circuit module to communicate a signal indicative of the assigned status to the central system
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via a network, said network communications module limiting all status communications with the
central system to only the signal indicative of the assigned status. For example, the Home
Security and Home Automation System comprises a network communication module coupled
with at least one of the sensors (such as Wireless Door and Window Sensors, Tilt Sensor,
Smoke/Heat/Freeze Sensor, FireFighter Module, Disaster Sensor, Carbon Monoxide Detector,
Water Leak Detector Sensor, Motion Sensor, Indoor Camera etc.) to communicate a signal
indicative of the assigned status (such as motion, smoke and/or carbon monoxide) to the central
system via a wireless network (such as GSM cellular, BLE 4.2, Wi-Fi and/or Z-Wave). The
communication module is dedicated to communicate with the central system to indicate the
status of the signal from at least one of the sensor. Certain aspects of this element are illustrated

in the screenshots below and/or those provided in connection with other allegations herein.
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@ LINK' Home Security « Home Automation = Pricing Support  Login ! 1_877_826_5443

Smart Home Panel

The 2GIG GotControl panel packs high-tech wireless technology into a compact, user-
quick

or the DIY homeowner. Full voice respon: $ emergency buttons

and multipie arming options maximize

interaclive pa

e the convenier

YOu Continuoy

alarm system pri N they armve home

keep the medicine ¢ net amed e hen th
user code who Is arming and disarming the system
panel seems 10 be endiess once you see how easy It Is 1o customize the panel 1o get the

information you desire

Bulld Your Own Package >

Technical Specfications

« Wireless arm/disarm
« Built in wireless receiver
« Comphance to Ul 1023 Household Burglar, UL 985 Household Fire Warn, ULC Listing ORD-C10239-74, ULC

55453489 SIA-CPO1

Source: https://www _linkinteractive.com/product/ CO-2GIG-CP21-345E2

23.  The infringing products provide a display to present an indication of a status of
the circuit based on the signal indicative of the assigned status, wherein the circuit module
measures a magnitude of a parameter of the circuit and generates a count value representative of
said magnitude. For example, the Home Security and Home Automation System including
Go!Control Alarm Panel, Smart Home Panel, Secondary Touchpad and/or 1Q Panel 2 Remote
(“a display”) to present an indication (such as alarm, notification and/or alerts) of at least one of
the coupled sensors based on the signal indicative of the assigned status (such as motion, smoke
and/or carbon monoxide). The sensor measures a magnitude of a parameter (such as resistance,
voltage and/or current) and generates a count value representative of at least one of the

magnitude. Further, Defendant also provides a mobile application (“Alarm.com”) to present an
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indication (such as alarm, notification and/or alerts) of at least one of the coupled sensor based
on the signal indicative of the assigned status (such as motion, smoke and/or carbon monoxide)
on a computing device (such as smartphone, tablet and/or PC). Certain aspects of this element
are illustrated in the screenshots below and/or those provided in connection with other
allegations herein.

’ Google Play ‘ [ Q|

( Alarm.com
e Alarm.com Mobile  Lifestyle
'

s ALARM.COM B 2 to wisnist m

Source: https://plav.google.com/store/apps/details?id=com.alarm.alarmmobile. android& hl=en
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App Store Preview

Alarm.com =

Alarm.com

AA X XS

ALARM.COM

Screenshots iphone iPad  Apple Watch  Apple TV

[ e ]
Source: https://itunes.apple.com/us/app/alarm-com/id3150106497mt=8§

24.  Defendant’s actions complained of herein will continue unless Defendant is
enjoined by this court.

25.  Defendant’s actions complained of herein are causing irreparable harm and
monetary damage to Plaintiff and will continue to do so unless and until Defendant is enjoined
and restrained by this Court.

26.  Plaintiff is in compliance with 35 U.S.C. § 287.

COUNT 11
(INFRINGEMENT OF UNITED STATES PATENT NO. 8,816,869)

27.  Plaintiff incorporates paragraphs 1 through 26 herein by reference.

28.  This cause of action arises under the patent laws of the United States and, in
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particular, under 35 U.S.C. §§ 271, et seq.

29.  Plaintiff is the owner by assignment of the ‘869 Patent with sole rights to
enforce the ‘869 Patent and sue infringers.

30. A copy of the ‘869 Patent, titled “Circuit Monitoring Device,” is attached hereto
as Exhibit B.

31.  The ‘869 Patent is valid, enforceable, and was duly issued in full compliance
with Title 35 of the United States Code.

32.  The claims of the ‘869 recite subject matter that is similar to that recited in the
claims of the ‘744 Patent (discussed above in connection with Count I). The specification of
the ‘869 Patent discloses problems of prior systems and non-generic solutions in a manner
similar to the specification of the ‘744 Patent (discussed above in connection with Count I).

33. The components recited in the claims (such as in claim 1 for example) are
configured, such that they operate in a non-conventional manner.

34. The components recited in the claims (such as in claim 1 for example) are
configured so as to allow a user to set customized ranges of values to be set as parameters of
end-of-line modules (i.e., parameters of a circuit). Generic processors cannot provide this
functionality. The ‘869 Patent specification clarifies that the claimed components, performing
the claimed functionality, are not conventional or generic.

35.  Collectively, the claimed embodiments in the ‘869 Patent provide new solutions
to problems of traditional security monitoring systems. These solutions are enabled by non-
generic components functioning in a non-conventional manner.

36. The ‘869 Patent solves a problem with the art that is rooted in computer

technology. The ‘869 Patent does not merely recite the performance of some business practice
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known from the pre-Internet world along with the requirement to perform it on the Internet.

37.  Upon information and belief, Defendant has infringed and continues to infringe
one or more claims, including at least Claim 1, of the ‘869 Patent by making, using, importing,
selling, and/or offering for sale, field devices, wireless systems, circuit monitoring devices,
and/or components for such systems covered by one or more claims of the ‘869 Patent.
Defendant causes infringement by its customers and users and encourages the use of accused
devices through distribution, support and customer services. Defendant has infringed and
continues to infringe the ‘869 Patent directly in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271.

38. Regarding Claim 1, Defendant makes, uses, sells and/or offers for sale a device
for monitoring the status of a circuit based on a measurable parameter of the circuit. For
example, Defendant provides a Home Security and Home Automation System including
central alarm control panels (such as Go!Control Alarm Panel, Smart Home Panel, Secondary
Touchpad and/or IQ Panel 2 Remote) for monitoring the measurable parameter (“such as
inductance, resistance and/or capacitance”) of an electric circuit associated with at least one of
the sensors (such as Wireless Door and Window Sensors, Tilt Sensor, Smoke/Heat/Freeze
Sensor, FireFighter Module, Disaster Sensor, Carbon Monoxide Detector, Water Leak Detector
Sensor, Motion Sensor, Indoor Camera etc.). Infringing products and certain aspects of this
element are illustrated in the screenshots below and/or in those provided in connection with

other allegations herein.
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FLINK - b g S o Y 18778206400

SOUN Coltar « 2 Wany Vi + Senash st Crash Protection

Buid Your Own Security
Package

< ’LT > LINH Home Security + Home Automation ~ Pricing Support  Login .! 1_877_826_5443
NTERACTIVE

Home Security Cameras

DIY Home Secunty
Wireless Home Security
Alarm Chat

Convenient Home Automation Control
One App For All Your Devices.

Request Quote

Source: https://www.linkinteractive.com/home-automation’/home-automation-control/
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< ﬁ ’ LTlNK. Home Security ~ Home Automation » Pricing Support  Login ! 1-877-826-5443

Home Automation Control
Z Wave Home Automation

Convenient Home Automation Control
One App For All Your Devices.

Request Quote

Source: https://www.linkinteractive.com’home-automati on’home-automation-control/
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@UNﬁ Home Securty - Home Audomatin - Prceg Suppot Logn Y 1-877-826-5443

DIY Security Equipment

Unk Interactive offers you the fexabiity 10 customize your own diy home security system 10 malch your specific needs and budget. Youl find affordabie security
products that have attained the highest level of relabiity. Put yourselfl in control of your home's safety 1oday with the help of Link Interactive

We ofer the highest quality in customer support before, during and after the salfinstallation process via kve chal, phone, email, skype, and easydo-follow
installation videos. Save yourself Sme and money with 3 security company hat's been in business since 1952 and cammies an A+ rating from the Betler Business
Bureau

Which Type of Security Products Are You Looking For?

—m| o6 ofly #re  Luw

Home Security Life Safety Home Automation Cameras Add Ons

Build A Custom Security Sysiem

<\ o *" Put Together A Security/Home Automation System
£ That Fits Your Needs

This option lets you select from 3l of cur cor tobuid ac option perfect
for your home or small business.

Popular Security Systems for your Home

" s

- »
Gol!Control Alarm Panel PANIC1 Wireless Remote Panic Button 2GIG Indoor HD Camera
The Future of residental home securty and home The wireless walersresistant panic bution is This indoor camera includes IR LEDs for vievang
management is NOW With the Golcontrol alarm compietely portable and comes with a necidace In lov-light condions and incorporates PIR with
panel, you o# an alin-one securty system with cord, wristband and beit cip. The pendant may be video motion detection (VMD) 10 reduce false
home managemeant used anywhere, even in the shower! moion-detection events

Source: https:/www_linkinteractive.com’home-security/div-home-security/
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Home Security «+  Home Automation «  Pricng  Support  Logn !

1-877-826-5443

Life Safety Products

Be dlerted and ready for any fres or home disasters with the ife safely equipment offered by Link Interactive. We offer 3 selection of sencke

heat

carbon

and monttor every component of your family's safety from one central control center

Component Categones

Home Security
Life Safety

Home Automation
Cameras

Add Ons

7 AN
".I ,‘b

&<

Smoke/Heat/Freeze Sensor

The wireless SmokeHeMFreeze Sensce. 2GIG's
nexd ganeraion in fire and freeze protection. offers
smoke detection, heat detection, and freeze
detection it is more customizable than peevious
models by allovang separation of the smoke, heat
and free2e features enadiing the alaem 10 detect

sensors, and moce which can all be integrated info Alarm com's cloud senvice, allowing you 1o control

/
7

Heat Detector

The sensor will send 3 signal it senses an
increass of 15 or more degrees per misnde. and vwill
Aso signal if the environmental temper sture
reaches 135 degrees

one, bwo, or all three

Disaster Sensor |

Theee Qoisys compatible wireless sensores in one! It
detects focd, heat and freeze sfuations

FireFighter Module

The 2Gig FireFighter 15 3 quick and easy way 1o
add smoke darm monitenng 10 your 2Gig control
panel. FireFighter is spacifically tuned 10 recognize
the specific cadence of 3 UL isted smoke
detector's alarm. This unique audio technology
monitors existing UL Bsted haed wired smoke
Geteciors n 3 home and vl send 3 wireless signal
1 the control panel when an alaem is detecied The
control panel vall then contact the central
monitonng staion. Vwhen used with the
interconnected smoke detector found in most

Source: https://www_linkinteractive.com/product cat/life-safety/
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@LINK : : -4

Home Security Products

'
| @2 9.
s> |
==
R
=
jary Touchpad
0=

Source: https://www_linkinteractive.com/product cat’home-security/

39. The infringing products provide a measurement means to measure the parameter
of the circuit. For example, the Home Security and Home Automation System integrates with
at least one of the sensors (such as Wireless Door and Window Sensors, Tilt Sensor,
Smoke/Heat/Freeze Sensor, FireFighter Module, Disaster Sensor, Carbon Monoxide Detector,
Water Leak Detector Sensor, Motion Sensor, Indoor Camera etc.) to measure the magnitude of
the parameter of the circuit associated with the sensor. Certain aspects of this element are
illustrated in the screenshots provided in connection with other allegations herein.

40.  The infringing products a comparison means to compare the measured

parameter to a plurality of threshold values and to assign a status based on a result of the
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comparison. For example, the Home Security and Home Automation System comprises a
comparison module coupled with at least one of the sensors (such as Wireless Door and
Window Sensors, Tilt Sensor, Smoke/Heat/Freeze Sensor, FireFighter Module, Disaster
Sensor, Carbon Monoxide Detector, Water Leak Detector Sensor, Motion Sensor, Indoor
Camera etc.) which compares the measured parameter with a threshold value and to assign a
status signal (such as alert, notification and/or notification) based on a result of the comparison.
Certain aspects of this element are illustrated in the screenshots provided in connection with
other allegations herein.

41. The infringing products provide a transmission means to communicate the
status over a network and to limit the communicated status to only digital bits indicating the
status and being sufficient to describe the status. For example, the Home Security and Home
Automation System comprises a communication module (“transmission means”) for at least
one of the sensors (such as Wireless Door and Window Sensors, Tilt Sensor,
Smoke/Heat/Freeze Sensor, FireFighter Module, Disaster Sensor, Carbon Monoxide Detector,
Water Leak Detector Sensor, Motion Sensor, Indoor Camera etc.) to transmit the status signal
(such as alert, notification and/or notification) via a wireless network (such as GSM cellular,
BLE 4.2, Wi-Fi and/or Z-Wave) to a central alarm control panels (such as Go!Control Alarm
Panel, Smart Home Panel, Secondary Touchpad and/or 1Q Panel 2 Remote) (“display”). The
communicated status contains digital bits indicating the status and being sufficient to describe
the status. Certain aspects of this element are illustrated in the screenshots provided in
connection with other allegations herein.

42. The infringing products provide a transmission means wherein the status

communication is transmitted over the network to an output means configured to present an
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indication of the assigned status. For example, the Home Security and Home Automation
System including Go!Control Alarm Panel, Smart Home Panel, Secondary Touchpad and/or
IQ Panel 2 Remote (“a display”) to present an indication (such as alarm, notification and/or
alerts) of at least one of the coupled sensors based on the signal assigned status transmitted
over the wireless network.  Further, Defendant also provides a mobile application
(“Alarm.com”) to display an indication (such as alarm, notification and/or alerts) of at least one
of the coupled sensor based on the signal assigned status on a computing device (such as
smartphone, tablet and/or PC). Certain aspects of this element are illustrated in the screenshots
provided in connection with other allegations herein.

43.  Defendant’s actions complained of herein will continue unless Defendant is
enjoined by this court.

44.  Defendant’s actions complained of herein are causing irreparable harm and
monetary damage to Plaintiff and will continue to do so unless and until Defendant is enjoined
and restrained by this Court.

45.  Plaintiff is in compliance with 35 U.S.C. § 287.

COUNT 111
(INFRINGEMENT OF UNITED STATES PATENT NO. 8,912,893)

46.  Plaintiff incorporates paragraphs 1 through 45 herein by reference.

47. This cause of action arises under the patent laws of the United States and, in
particular, under 35 U.S.C. §§ 271, et seq.

48.  Plaintiff is the owner by assignment of the ‘893 Patent with sole rights to
enforce the ‘893 Patent and sue infringers.

49. A copy of the ‘893 Patent, titled “Circuit Monitoring Device,” is attached hereto
as Exhibit C.
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50.  The ‘893 Patent is valid, enforceable, and was duly issued in full compliance
with Title 35 of the United States Code.

51.  The claims of the ‘893 recite subject matter that is similar to that recited in the
claims of the ‘744 Patent (discussed above in connection with Count I). The specification of
the ‘893 Patent discloses problems of prior systems and non-generic solutions in a manner
similar to the specification of the ‘744 Patent (discussed above in connection with Count I).

52. The components recited in the claims (such as in claim 1 for example) are
configured, such that they operate in a non-conventional manner.

53. The components recited in the claims (such as in claim 1 for example) are
configured so as to allow a user to set customized ranges of values to be set as parameters of
end-of-line modules (i.e., parameters of a circuit). Generic processors cannot provide this
functionality. The ‘893 Patent specification clarifies that the claimed components, performing
the claimed functionality, are not conventional or generic.

54.  Collectively, the claimed embodiments in the ‘893 Patent provide new solutions
to problems of traditional security monitoring systems. These solutions are enabled by non-
generic components functioning in a non-conventional manner.

55. The ‘893 Patent solves a problem with the art that is rooted in computer
technology. The ‘893 Patent does not merely recite the performance of some business practice
known from the pre-Internet world along with the requirement to perform it on the Internet.

56.  Upon information and belief, Defendant has infringed and continues to infringe
one or more claims, including at least Claim 1, of the ‘893 Patent by making, using, importing,
selling, and/or offering for sale, field devices, wireless systems, circuit monitoring devices,

and/or components for such systems covered by one or more claims of the ‘893 Patent.
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Defendant causes infringement by its customers and users and encourages the use of accused
devices through distribution, support and customer services. Defendant has infringed and
continues to infringe the ‘893 Patent directly in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271.

57. Regarding Claim 1, Defendant makes, uses, sells and/or offers for sale a circuit
monitoring device. Defendant provides a Home Security and Home Automation System (such
as Home Security Cameras, DIY Home Security, Wireless Home Security, Alarm Chat, Home
Automation Control and/or Z Wave Home Automation) for monitoring at least one of the
sensors (such as Wireless Door and Window Sensors, Tilt Sensor, Smoke/Heat/Freeze Sensor,
FireFighter Module, Disaster Sensor, Carbon Monoxide Detector, Water Leak Detector Sensor,
Motion Sensor, Indoor Camera etc.). Infringing products and certain aspects of this element
are illustrated in the screenshots below and/or in those provided in connection with other

allegations herein.

@UNK e Sy v e+ g St togn YW 1.877.806.5443

Buid Your Own Security
Package

PLAINTIFF’S FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT AGAINST DEFENDANT
ALARM.COM HOLDINGS, INC. dba LINK INTERACTIVE PAGE | 27



Case 1:19-cv-00856-MN

(D)LINK

Document 10 Filed 07/17/19 Page 28 of 37 PagelD #: 185

Home Securty « Home Automation « Pricing Support  Login ! 1_877_826_5443

L
Home Security Cameras
OIY Mome Secunty
Wireless Home Security

Alarm Chat

Convenient Home Automation Control
One App For All Your Devices.

Request Quote

Source: https://www_linkinteractive.com home-automati on’home-automation-control/

(BLINK

Home Security + Home Automation ~ Pricing Support  Login ! 1_877_826_5443
.

Home Automation Control
Z Wave Home Automation

Convenient Home Automation Control

One App For All Your Devices.

Request Quote

Source: https://www_linkinteractive.com’home-automation’home-automation-control/
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ACTIVE

@HNK Home Securty «  Home Aomaton « Prceg Suppot Logn WY 1-877-826-5443

DIY Security Equipment

Uink Interactive offers you the fiexdbiity 10 cusiomize your own diy home security system 10 malch your specific needs and budget. You'll find affordable security
products that have attained the highest level of relabilty Put yoursalfl in control of your home's safety 10day with the help of Link Interactive

We ofier the highest quality in customer support before. during and after the sallinstallation process via kve chal, phone, email, skype, and easydo-follow
installation videos. Save yourself Sme and money with a security company hat's been in business since 1952 and camies an A+ ratng from the Betler Business

Bureau

Which Type of Security Products Are You Looking For?

—=| o6 oy ere  uv

Home Automation Cameras Add Ons

Home Security Life Safety

Build A Custom Security Sysiem

AR, Put Together A Security/Home Automation System
B That Fits Your Needs
‘ 2 This option lets you sedect from il of cur components 0 build a customized option perfect
L for your home or small business

Popular Security Systems for your Home

" 8 °

GolControl Alarm Panel PANIC1 Wireless Remote Panic Button 2GIG Indoor HD Camera

The Future of residenal home securlty and home The wireless waler-resistant panic bution is This indoor camera includes IR LEDs for vievang
management is NOW With the Golcontrol alam completely portable and comes with a necidace In love-light condiions and incorporates PIR with
panel. you oot an all-in-one security system with coed, wristband and beit cip. The pendant may be video motion delection (VMD) 1o reduce false
home management used anywhere, even in the shower! moSon-detection events

Source: https://www_linkinteractive.com/home-securitv/div-home-security/
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Mome Securty +  Home Astomaticn «  Pricng  Swppod  Logi g 1-877-826-5443

Life Safety Products

e derted and ready for any fees of home dsasiers with e e safely equipment ofeced by Link inferacive We offer 3 selecton of smoke
5ens0rs, heat dedectons. Carbon Moncuide Sensors. and more wWhich Can ol be Infegrated o Alarm com's cioud service. alowing you 10 control

and monkion every component of your family's safety from cne central control center

Home Security
Life Safety

Home Automation

Cameras
Add Ons

Smoke/Heat/Freeze Sensor

The weless SmokeMeal¥reeze Sensor, 2GIG's
nexd generaton in fre and feede prolection. oflers
smoke Setection heat detecton. and Seele
Getecton B 15 more CustorCable than previous
models by alowang separation of the smoke heat
and Peele featires enabing e sl 1o Setect
GO, B o 31l Bvee

Disaster Sensor

Three Qoisys compatibie wirsless sensors in one’ it
detects Sood heat and freee stuatons

/
-

Heat Detector

The sensor will send 3 signal If i senses an
Increase of 15 or more degrees per minute. and wil
210 wonal € e emraronmental lemper dture
rexches 135 Sagrees

FireFighter Module

The 20ip FreFighter is & quick and easy way 1o
230 sevcke Marm monltonng 10 your 20 contral
panel FreFighter & specifically tuned 10 recognce
e speciic cadence of 3 UL ksted smcke
Gelector's alarm This unique Judio fechnology
moniors existng UL ksted hard wired smoke
detectors in 2 home and will send 3 wirsless signal
10 the control paned when an alarm is detecied The
control panel wil hen contact the central
mondonng staton VWhen used with e
nlerconrecied smoke detector $ound in most

Source: https:/www_linkinteractive.com/product cat/life-safety/
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Home Security Products

—
L Satety -
Mome AUomaton (Ce)
- E——— Key Ring Remote
’ Smart H Pan
p— (r—
l !
{
Secondary Keypad S—
S d )chpad

Source: https://www_linkinteractive.com/product cat’home-security/
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Dedicated Communication

Dedicated and secure cellular communication provides safe and relable
uninterrupted protection — even f the phone, internet or broadband is down

Reliable & fast cellular communication, no landline needed
In the event of a power outage, your system will operate on backup battery
power for 24 hours $0 you stay secure

Safe for critical secunty messages — not shared with intemet, entertainment or
phone lines

Tamper-Resistant
Alarm com withstands common vuinerabilities to keep you protected when you need it most

Patented Crash & Smash technology ensures that your system Secure cellular communication is not impacted by damaged
works even if the security panel is damaged before it can send a phone, internet or broadband lines that can be cut from the
signal, or the phone ine is cut outside

Source: https:/www_linkinteractive.com’home-automation/'z-wave-home-automation’
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Awareness & Control Wherever You Go

Unilke tradtional systems that only alert you in an alarm event, Alarm com lets you know what's happening at your peoperty at any Sme - whether your system &5
armed or nol. And with owr modile app, you can check in anytime and arm and Gsarm your system remotely wherever you go

Alarm.com -

- -t

The Wright Home: Front Door  simas
Video recorded a new video clip -

at 3:41PM on Wed, 1012,

Cancel

OK

Mobile App

Stay in control of your system at all Smes. Our top rated, easy 1o use moble app puts your home in your
hands. You can arm and disarm your systém, and check the aming status at any time

Instant Alerts

Get real-time notifications by et of emadl 10 know what's happening 3 home, the moment it happens | .
Choose 10 receve akrls via text, push nobificaton. emal or phone cal

Personalized User Codes

Croate unique user codes for your family and visitors, and inow who's coming and going, and who armed
or disarmed the system. Enable or dsable codes at any time

History
Lock back at activity over time or search for specific events. With our always-aware sensors and

searchabie event history, you Can review any activity by sensor, type of event, cate or time

Source: https://www_linkinteractive.com’home-automation/z-wave-home-automation’

58.  The infringing products provide one or more processors, each having a memory
and an input electrically coupled to a circuit which is configured to receive a measured
electrical parameter of the circuit, and modules comprising software to configure the one or
more processors. For example, the Home Security and Home Automation System including
Go!Control Alarm Panel, Smart Home Panel, Secondary Touchpad and/or IQ Panel 2 Remote
comprises one or more processors having a memory which is further electrically coupled over
a wireless network with the sensor to receive a measured electrical parameter (such as
resistance, inductance and/or capacitance) of the circuit associated with the sensor. The Home

Security and Home Automation System also comprises a software to configure the one or more
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processors and send the signals (such as alert, notification and/or notification) to a Go!Control
Alarm Panel, Smart Home Panel, Secondary Touchpad and/or IQ Panel 2 Remote and/or
mobile computing device via a wireless network (such as GSM cellular, BLE 4.2, Wi-Fi and/or
Z-Wave). Certain aspects of this element are illustrated in the screenshots provided in
connection with other allegations herein.

59. The infringing products a comparison module configured to compare a digital
value, which corresponds to a magnitude of the measured electrical parameter, to a plurality of
threshold values stored in the memory, wherein the plurality of threshold values define a
respective plurality of ranges of digital values, each range corresponding to one of a plurality
of conditions of the circuit including a normal condition and at least one alarm condition. For
example, the Home Security and Home Automation System integrates with at least one of the
sensors (such as Wireless Door and Window Sensors, Tilt Sensor, Smoke/Heat/Freeze Sensor,
FireFighter Module, Disaster Sensor, Carbon Monoxide Detector, Water Leak Detector Sensor,
Motion Sensor, Indoor Camera etc.) which compares a digital value corresponding to a
magnitude of the measured parameter (such as inductance, resistance and/or capacitance) with
a threshold value stored in the memory. The plurality of threshold values (high or low)
corresponds to the plurality of the circuit conditions (such as normal condition and alarm
condition (alert, notification, siren and/or panic button)). Certain aspects of this element are
illustrated in the screenshots provided in connection with other allegations herein.

60. The infringing products provide a comparison module to assign a status based
on the digital value being within a particular range defined by one or more of the plurality of
threshold values. For example, the Home Security and Home Automation System assigns a

status (such as alert, notification and/or notification) based on the digital value. The digital
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value is in the range defined by one or more threshold values. Certain aspects of this element
are illustrated in the screenshots provided in connection with other allegations herein.

61.  The infringing products provide a communication module configured to
generate a status signal including at least the assigned status. For example, the Home Security
and Home Automation System provides a network communication module coupled with at
least one of the sensors (such as Wireless Door and Window Sensors, Tilt Sensor,
Smoke/Heat/Freeze Sensor, FireFighter Module, Disaster Sensor, Carbon Monoxide Detector,
Water Leak Detector Sensor, Motion Sensor, Indoor Camera etc.) which compares the count
value with a threshold value and generates a status signal (such as alert, notification and/or
notification). Certain aspects of this element are illustrated in the screenshots provided in
connection with other allegations herein.

62. The infringing products provide a transmitter configured to transmit the status
signal to a remote computing system over a network for output, by the remote computing
system, of the status. For example, the Home Security and Home Automation System provides
a communication module (“transmission means”) for at least one of the sensors (such as
Wireless Door and Window Sensors, Tilt Sensor, Smoke/Heat/Freeze Sensor, FireFighter
Module, Disaster Sensor, Carbon Monoxide Detector, Water Leak Detector Sensor, Motion
Sensor, Indoor Camera etc.) to transmit the status signal ((such as alert, notification and/or
notification) to a central alarm control panels (such as Go!Control Alarm Panel, Smart Home
Panel, Secondary Touchpad and/or IQ Panel 2 Remote) (“display”). Certain aspects of this
element are illustrated in the screenshots provided in connection with other allegations herein.

63. Defendant’s actions complained of herein will continue unless Defendant is

enjoined by this court.

PLAINTIFF’S FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT AGAINST DEFENDANT
ALARM.COM HOLDINGS, INC. dba LINK INTERACTIVE PAGE | 35



Case 1:19-cv-00856-MN Document 10 Filed 07/17/19 Page 36 of 37 PagelD #: 193

64.  Defendant’s actions complained of herein are causing irreparable harm and
monetary damage to Plaintiff and will continue to do so unless and until Defendant is enjoined
and restrained by this Court.

65.  Plaintiff is in compliance with 35 U.S.C. § 287.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff asks the Court to:

(a) Enter judgment for Plaintiff on this Complaint on all causes of action asserted
herein;

(b) Award Plaintiff past and future damages, costs, and expenses resulting from
Defendant’s infringement in accordance with 35 U.S.C. § 284;

(c) Award Plaintiff pre-judgment and post-judgment interest and costs; and

(d) Award Plaintiff such further relief to which the Court finds Plaintiff entitled
under law or equity.
Dated: July 17, 2019 Respectfully submitted,

/s/Stamatios Stamoulis

STAMATIOS STAMOULIS
RICHARD WEINBLATT
STAMOULIS & WEINBLATT LLC
800 N. West Street

Third Floor

Wilmington, DE 19801

(302) 999-1540
stamoulis@swdelaw.com
weinblatt@swdelaw.com

ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFF
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned certifies that all counsel of record who have consented to electronic service are
being served with a copy of this document via the Court’s CM/ECF system per Local Rule CV-
5(a)(3) on July 17, 2019.

/s/Stamatios Stamoulis

STAMATIOS STAMOULIS (#4606)
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